
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Cabinet Member for for Community Services, 
Councillor Chris Dowling 
 
THURSDAY, 23 JULY 2015 AT 10.00 AM  
 
CC2, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
AGENDA 
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 2 June 2015  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct.  
 

3   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4   Hastings Library and Register Office  (Pages 5 - 8) 
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

5   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 15 July 2015 
 
Contact Simon Bailey, Democratic Services Officer,  
01273 481935 
Email: simon.bailey@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Community Services, Councillor Chris Dowling, on 
2 June 2015 at Council Chamber, County Hall, Lewes  
 

 
Councillor Keeley spoke on item 4 (see minute 3) 
 
 
 
1 MINUTES  
 
1.1 Councillor Dowling approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 26 
March 2015. 
 
 
2 REPORTS  
 
2.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 
 
 
3 CHANGE OF PROCESSES AND FEES FOR LICENCING RENEWALS OF APPROVED 

MARRIAGE PREMISES  
 

3.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport about the change of processes and fees for licensing renewals of Approved Marriage 
Premises (AMP).  

DECISION 

3.2 RESOLVED: (1) to approve the change in process for the renewal of licensing of 
Approved Marriage Premises; and 

(2) to approve the 2016/17 licensing fees, under delegated authority. 
 
Reason 

3.3 The service received by customers will be enhanced by this proposal, as couples will 
have certainty that their wedding venue will still be licenced at the time of their wedding. 

3.4 These proposals will provide the Registration Service with a reasonable six month notice 
period that an AMP is not seeking to re-licence which will mean that the Service will not take 
new bookings for those AMPs. 

3.5 The fee increase proposal will allow the Registration Service to invoice a year ahead 
during the 2015/16 financial year, and then during the annual budget setting period the Service 
will propose the AMP licencing fee for 2 years ahead. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report to: Lead Cabinet Member for Community Services 

 
Date: 23 July 2015 

 
Report by: Director of Communities, Economy, and Transport  

 
Title of report: Hastings Library and Register Office 

 
Purpose of report: To approve revised proposals which are better value for money and 

would deliver an improved and enhanced Library and Register Office. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to: 
 
(1) Agree to the revised proposals to move Hastings Register Office to Hastings Town Hall 

and to modernise the existing Hastings Library in its current location (the Brassey 

Building), incorporating the Children’s Library; and 

(2) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to approve a 

detailed scheme of works for the proposals.  

 
1 Background Information 
 
1.1 The Library and Information Service and Registration Service in Hastings are currently 
delivered from three sites: the main library from The Brassey (13 Claremont, Hastings), and the 
Children’s Library and Registration Service from two separate leased premises.  In 2011, Lead 
Member approval was given for the purchase of 12 Claremont (the building next to The Brassey).  
The intention was to join the two premises and deliver all three services from this new location.  A 
design and build scheme was commissioned for this.   
 
1.2 Due to the complexity of the scheme, the condition of both buildings, and the impact of 
market forces, the projected build costs exceeded the original budget of £8.016 million. Following 
the development of a new, value engineered option for the scheme, an additional £1.9m of budget 
provision was approved by Cabinet on 22 July 2014. Since the summer of 2014, various design, 
survey and consultancy works have been undertaken on the project, as part of the ‘pre-
construction phase’, which is now complete. 
 
2. Supporting Information 
 
2.1     Hastings Borough Council in early March 2015 informed the County Council that it would like 
to consider sharing Hastings Town Hall with other organisations as a way of reducing the running 
costs of the building, whilst ideally retaining its role as a key civic building.  The available space 
and internal layout of the Town Hall do not make it a suitable location for the Library, but its central 
location and architectural merit make it a highly attractive location for the Hastings Register Office.   
 
2.2 Moving the Register Office into the Town Hall and modernising the Library in the existing 
Brassey Building would enable all of the objectives of the approved scheme to be achieved at a 
considerably reduced cost, which would provide excellent value for money.  It is estimated that this 
revised scheme could be delivered for around £1m less than the approved budget, returning 
funding to the County Council’s capital programme for other high priority projects.  It would also 
deliver wider benefits to Hastings Borough Council and residents of Hastings.  For these reasons, 
revised proposals for the Register Office and Library have been formulated. 
  
Proposals – Hastings Register Office 
2.3 This proposal is founded on a partnership between the County Council and Hastings 
Borough Council. It is proposed that the Hastings Register Office will move into Hastings Town 
Hall.  Agreement has been reached with Hastings Borough Council for the County Council to lease 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



an area of the Town Hall for a period of ten years. This will include the use of the Council 
Chamber, which will provide a very desirable venue for ceremonies.  There is little internal 
reconfiguration required, and with minimal refurbishment cost, the Register Office could move into 
the Town Hall by the end of 2015. 
 
2.4 The proposal to relocate the Register Office to Hastings Town Hall is well-aligned with the 
key objectives of the SPACES Programme, which seeks to drive more effective delivery of public 
service in East Sussex through efficient use of our estate, via partnership working and co-location. 
It supports Hastings Borough Council’s desire to move non-essential services out of the building 
into more cost-effective and suitable space, whilst providing the Registration Service with high 
quality amenities in a centrally located and well-recognised public building.  Hastings Borough 
Council will retain the remaining areas of the Town Hall as offices and for its customer contact 
centre.   
 
2.5 The relocation of the Register Office also enables the sale of the current site by the 
Borough Council to an affordable housing provider, with the provision of 30 affordable residential 
homes.  This would be a significant boost for Hastings.  Hasting Borough Council has provisionally 
accepted an offer for the site for this purpose, which is backed by Homes and Communities 
Agency funding, but which requires vacant possession of the land by early 2016. 
 
Library 
2.6 The proposal would deliver the existing Library and Learndirect services, plus the 
Children’s Library, within a refurbished and modernised Brassey Building.  The original architects 
have been engaged to provide an initial scheme design. The revised scheme provides an area of 
public library space which is 82m2 more than is contained within the current Hastings Library and 
Children’s Library, and which is just 32m2 less than that contained within the approved scheme for 
12 & 13 Claremont. This has been achieved by more flexible use of space and reducing storage 
and archive materials on site.  
 
2.7 The current revised costs are based on high level consultant estimates. If Lead Member 
endorses this report, we will finalise the design by late August 2015, and then go out to tender for 
the revised scheme in early Autumn 2015. The indicative programme for design and procurement 
is 32 weeks, with a further 39 weeks for construction and fit out (i.e. 71 weeks in total, if all 
approvals are in place).  Completion by the end of 2016 is possible (with opening to the public in 
early 2017), if the scheme is approved by summer 2015. 
 
2.8  As the new Register Office will make use of a high quality existing building with very little 
modification costs, the budget can be used to prioritise the library refurbishment, to ensure that it is 
delivered to a high specification that meets the needs and expectations of its users.   
 
2.9 If this proposal is approved by Lead Member, an appraisal for 12 Claremont will be 
undertaken to explore the future options for the building, both within the County Council, and with 
our partners in the SPACES programme. 
 
Other Considerations 
2.10 The revised proposals also significantly reduce the financial risks associated with the 
construction costs of the approved scheme.  The contractor for the approved scheme has advised 
Officers that there was a large increase in construction costs for the project, which would have 
exceeded the budget.  A further re-design of the scheme would be required to enable it to proceed 
within budget.  Given that the scheme has already been extensively value-engineered, further re-
design would be extremely difficult without compromising the objectives of the project and its ability 
to meet the needs and expectations of the Library and Register Office users. Whilst some abortive 
design costs will need to be recognised, a good proportion of the pre-construction work undertaken 
to date will be applicable for the revised scheme.  
 
3. Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 These revised proposals meet all of the scheme objectives for an improved and enhanced 
Library and Register Office for Hastings at a considerably reduced cost, which would provide 

Page 6



excellent value for money.    The proposals for the Register Office make the best use of Hastings 
Town Hall, an architecturally and historically important building, providing a highly desirable venue 
for ceremonies.  By working in partnership with Hastings Borough Council, the proposal frees up 
estate for re-development as social housing, meeting the needs of the local community. 
 
3.2 The revised proposals for Hastings Library provide an area of public library space which is 
82m2 more than is contained within the current Hastings Library and Children’s Library.  The 
building can be delivered to a high specification that meets the needs and expectations of its users.   
 
3.3 The Lead Member for Community Services is therefore recommended to agree to the 
revised proposals to move Hastings Register Office to Hastings Town Hall and to modernise the 
existing Hastings Library within the Brassey Building, incorporating the Children’s Library.  Lead 
Member is further recommended to delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy 
and Transport to approve the detailed scheme of works for the proposals. 
 
 
RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 
Contact Officer: Stephen Potter 
Tel. No. 01273 336520 
Email: stephen.potter@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
LOCAL MEMBERS 
Councillors Charman, Daniel, Forward, Hodges, Pragnell, Scott, Webb and Wincott. 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
None 

Page 7

mailto:stephen.potter@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 2 June 2015
	4 Hastings Library and Register Office

